Be exceptional

gc Greenhead College

GREENHEAD COLLEGE CORPORATION

Minutes of the Quality & Standards Committee meeting held in

Govs present:

In attendance:

Upper Greenhead House
Monday 7 October 2024, 4.30pm

Adrian Barrass (Chair); Darinder Shokar; Ed Wynn; Jeanette
Palmer; Liz Bowen; Mark Howells (via Teams, until 17.41); Mo
Bunter (Principal); Richard Armstrong; Stuart Irving (via Teams,
16.49 to 17.12)

Mark Mitchell (AP); Tom Rowley (AP); Magdaline Glynn (AP);
Claire Parr (AP); Usman Anwar (VP); Sharon Roper (Clerk)

Apologies Heather Roebuck

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION
1. Welcome, ABA welcomed participants. Apologies as above.

apologies

2. Declarations

No declarations of pecuniary/prejudicial interest.

3. Minutes16/9/24

3.1 Minutes 16/9/24, previously circulated, approved by
Committee & signed-off by Chair; Clerk to file. Clerk

3.2 Matters arising not covered on agenda, paper
previously circulated:

1. Most of the outstanding items will be discussed during
this meeting.

2. Q&S committee members agreed that actions 11, 13, 16,
17,18, 23, 25 and 31, 32 can be closed. Clerk

4. CLT report:
Outcomes,
Enrolment &
Oxbridge

4. MBR summarised the CLT report, previously circulated:

4.1 College Outcome Analysis 2024:
There is no subject level detail in this report, this will be
detailed in the SAR (Q&S 2/12/24).

KPIs 2023-24:

1. Pass rates, high grades, retained & assessed — all the
results exceeded the KPI.

Student satisfaction missed the KPI by 0.4% and was 1%
lower than the previous year.

Page 1 of 11




2. Overall pass rates improved by 0.8% and were 1.9%
above the national average.

Result 99% - KPI target was 98.5-99.5%.

3. High grades improved significantly by 4.5% and were
9.9% above the national rate.

Result 64.5% - KPI target was 62.5-63.5%.

4. A* to A grade is a new benchmark which has started
being looked at nationally, as good practice GC will start to
monitor this.

Result 34.8%, 7.5% above the national rate.

5. Retained and Assessed rate, result is 95.9%, 0.4%
higher than KPI 95-95.5%. This is well above the national
rate, from an Ofsted perspective, this result is outstanding.
6. Value added wasn’t used for KPIs but has been used
with HODs to drill down into departments, class sets, and
different student groups’ results and this will be detailed in
the SAR.

7. Student satisfaction (93.1%) has been affected by one
subject, Music A Level, which was a small cohort, but it has
impacted on the overall result.

As an example, most subjects have 94% student
satisfaction to the question ‘my teacher provides detailed
feedback on my work’, music had 15% student satisfaction.
Ewy asked how student satisfaction was calculated for a
cohort of approximately 15 students to significantly impact
the overall score. MMI said the results of all the subjects is
taken and an average is calculated, rather than a weighted
average of how large the cohorts are in each subject.
MBR said that how the figures are calculated should be
considered for the future.

DSH asked what the student satisfaction score is with the
Music results taken out. MBR asked for further student
satisfaction figures using differing calculations.

JPA asked if the low student satisfaction results in the
bottom two subjects were a surprise — yes, they were, they
have been followed up with HODs. Music student
satisfaction results were good at A1 stage, but students
experienced low scores in music composition, and they
were aware of this when taking the survey. No student
destinations were affected, and most students didn’t
request remarking.

UAN said that a certain percentage of remarking which
increased student results used to trigger a full centre re-
mark, but this no longer happens. Student must sign a
declaration for re-marking and results can decrease as well
as increase.

8. Retention and attendance KPIs:

Retention KPI exceeded by 0.4%.

Result 95.9% — KPI 95-99.5%

This was 2.4% higher than the national average.

9. Attendance Result 94.6% - KPI 95-99.5%

This was lower than the KPI.

MMI

Page 2 of 11




MBR has benchmarked this against the national rate of
92% from Sixth Sense (national average of centres who
subscribe to Sixth sense).

Granular detail around attendance will come to the SAR
validation meeting (Q&S 2/12/24).

10. Subjects whose results have significantly improved from
2023 include Biology, Classics, Economics, Geography,
Maths, PE, Politics and Psychology.

Subjects to focus on this year are Art & Design, Chemistry,
Computer Science, French, and Music with granular detail
available at the SAR validation meeting.

RAR asked if Computer Sciences has moved to its mean
results as demand for the course have grown significantly —
the cohort has grown by 147% over the last five years but
didn’t grow significantly last year.

RAR asked if growth has caused a dip in Computer Science
results and if this can be reported at Q&S (2/12/24).

4.2 KPIl recommendations 2024-25
MBR looked at last year’s KPls, achievements last AY and
is proposing challenging and realistic targets for this AY.

KPls for 2024-2025 discussion included:

1. Pass rate (A*-E)

Proposed KP1 99-99.8%

RAR reminded governors that mid-year A1 data is now
produced to give a feel for how students might perform at
A2. The A1 monitoring was slightly higher than the A2
monitoring at the same time. MBR said that there were
fewer A1 students at U grade level in the A1 progress
assessments. A1 higher marks data were also better than
A2.

ABA said the risk with incremental increases is that some
KPls will hit 100% which isn’t realistic.

EWY said the proposed pass rate KPI of 99-99.8% is
unrealistic as the top figure equates to 7.5 U grades across
the whole cohort.

ABA asked how many U grades there were last year — 38,
which achieved a pass rate result of 99% in August 2024.
Q&S members approved that the KPI should be 99-99.5%

2. High grades (A*-B)

Proposed KPI 64-66%

RAR suggested a range from below last year’s achievement
to above the score achieved, ABA agreed considering the
higher A1 monitoring results.

Q&S committee members approved this approach.

3. Retained & Assessed rate

Proposed KPI — 95-96.5%. The lower end 95% remains the
same but with a stretch target of 96.5%.

ABA asked why a wider range has been proposed for this.
MBR said retention is the biggest risk in this KPI and

MMI/TRO

Page 3 of 11




increasing complex needs and mental health issues have a
big impact on retention. The stretch element reflects the
desire to retain more students.

Q&S committee members approved this KPI.

4. Value Added

Proposed KPI Grade 4

RAR and EWY asked for explanations of the grade system -
grade 4 is top 40% in the country, grade 3 is top 25%,
grade 2 top 10% and grade 1 is number one in the country.
ABA sked how this is measured — this is measured from the
average grade from a student’s highest 8 GCSE results,
and an algorithm predicts their A Level results. GC uses
value added as the students’ minimum predicted grades.

If the grades are met, it is negative value added, if
exceeded it is positive value added, achieving a grade
below is a larger negative value added, and a U grade is
double negative value added.

The ALPs scoring mechanism: 5 is average, 4 above
average, 3 is top 25%, 2 is top 10%, 1 is top in the country
and this measures the impact the college has on students’
results.

RAR shared that he is aware of a top performing sixth form
college who always has a negative value added because of
how selective their recruitment is.

RAR asked if a KPI of grade 4 is challenging enough, in
2019 GC was grade 3. MBR said that the results for 2024
are better than 2019 but the value added is not.

MMI said that formula sheets will still be given to students in
exams over the next few years, ALPS benchmarks from
2019 are not like-for-like.

MBR said that in the recent SFCA webinar Nick Allen
advised not to compare to 2019.

EWY asked if the target is aspirational enough for GC and
suggested that a range could be added.

RAR asked if 4 will be a positive value added — it varies
annually depending on national performance.

RAR asked for a governor development session around
Value Added and ALPS.

EWY asked about Value Add being a score that was
publicised to help students and parents decide which
colleges they were interested in. Future KPIs could express
what the public understands and is looking for.

MHO agreed and said that private school’s market good
Value Add achieved by small class sizes.

MBR said that GC chooses to use ALPS because it drills
down to student performance in each subject, which informs
teaching and learning and assessment strategies.
Following further discussion governors approved the KPI of
Positive Value Added.

5. Student satisfaction
Proposed KPI 94-95.5%

MBR/ clerk
to schedule

Page 4 of 11




MBR wants to increase student satisfaction. Addressing
concerns with HODs and pastoral work should see this
measure improve.

EBO agreed that learners post covid have had a markedly
different developmental route through education, and
student satisfaction makes GC evaluate and serve the
learners in front of them. Students with SEND needs make
up 20% of the cohort and assumptions should not be made
about any student.

EBO is an experienced teacher, the student satisfaction
survey prompts her to look at what students have said
about being in her classroom during the year.

EWY asked why the KPI is increasing if last year’s target
was not achieved.

MBR pointed out that it was only one subject which affected
the result for last year.

MMI said that one question on the survey ‘l find the
Moodle/SharePoint area supports my learning in this
subject’ does not score well because some departments do
not use Moodle or IT. The average score for this question is
84%.

JPA asked that this question is reworded, and MBR asked if
the question can be missed, or a not applicable option be
added. EWY asked that the question be updated to include
quizlets and tablets.

RAR asked if the student satisfaction figure is a composition
of all the questions. He said the drop in student satisfaction
might also reflect the level of building work undertaken
during the student’s time at GC

ABA asked how many students responded to the survey — it
was approximately 80%, the exact figure to be confirmed to
Q&S members.

ABA said a better response might increase the score — MMI
said that a huge effort is put into chasing student
responses.

JPA asked if a KPI for student responses should be
considered. MBR said that HODs are targeted with an 80%
completion rate.

EBO feels the survey is a smart way to evaluate students at
an annual checkpoint, students are changing in terms of
what they want from GC and GC evaluating and reflecting
on the feedback is good.

TRO said that the timing of surveys is important. The
surveys should be at the end of A2’s GC experience, this
can be difficult because before easter the students sit
mocks, after Easter students are receiving EPQ marks,
completing coursework and for some subject’s exams are
starting earlier. Completion rate is higher when students are
in classes and teachers give them time to complete the
surveys.

SMI asked how many questions are in the survey -there are
15.

DSH asked if students are surveyed at any other times —
there are three surveys over the two years (mid-year for

MMI

MMI

Page 5 of 11




A1s, end of A1 and end of A2), and there are several focus
groups when student opinion is canvassed during the AY.
RAR asked what the student satisfaction results are for A1
students — 94.9% for A1.

MBR is happy to keep the aspirational KPI.

Q&S committee members approved this KPI.

6. Retention rate

Proposed KPI 95.5-96.5%

This reflects the retained and assessed rate.
Q&S committee members approved this KPI.

7. Attendance rate

Proposed KPI 95%

This is aspirational with an increase of 0.4% on what was
achieved last AY. There is a new process to monitor
attitudes to learning and there is an improved student
reengagement policy.

Q&S committee members approved this KPI.

4.3 Enrolment Summary 2024:

1. Enrolments: Local Partner schools (LP) 38% and Partner
schools (P) 62%

There’s been a shift between LP and P enrolments this year
due to lower GCSE results from LP schools, Kirklees
outcomes have dropped at a higher rate than nationally,
potential students who accepted conditional offers did not
meet 3 x 6 grade entry requirements.

2. There is no change to the enrolment numbers from
individual LP and P schools

3. MBR received positive feedback from LP schools for the
lower conditional offer for their pupils, and this will continue.
MBR feels GC’s marketing is working and GC will develop
strategies to help LP schools raise their final outcomes in
their GCSE results.

4. The new enrolment process worked. It was a hybrid
model with partner applicants encouraged to enrol online
and LP applicants were asked to enrol in person, but they
could also enrol online if they wanted to stay with their initial
subject choices.

5. There was an unforeseen impact on staff processing
enrolments and balancing the curriculum. This year
enrolment will be wholly online, unless students haven’'t met
entry requirements or need to change subjects. The
enrolment process is currently under review and the
amended model will be in place by Christmas.

6. The 1450 enrolment target was missed for the second
year running. The 2750 global target was met by retaining
last year’'s A1 students.

Potential issues for future recruitment include the LP trend
of not meeting entry requirements continuing which will
impact GC enrolments, apprenticeships increasing and
other providers changing their curriculum.

MBR

Page 6 of 11




GC will review its marketing approach The theme from
MBR’s meetings with LP head teachers is that they are
unaware of the support available to GC students, and this
will be added to year 11 assemblies.

7. RAR asked about GC'’s strategy to the increase in the 16-
19 population in the next 3-4 years, these students live in
Kirklees and largely attend LP schools. There may not be
many additional GC students if GCSE results in these
schools do not improve. GCSE results in Kirklees schools
will have ramifications on GC’s future recruitment and
expansion strategies.

EWY asked what the LP schools have said about their
GCSE results — MBR has spoken to two schools so far who
were surprised by the results.

UAN said the LP students turned away at enrolment had
missed the required English grade.

DSH, a governor at a LP school, sees a direct correlation
between literacy skills and results, and there is increasing
uptake in BTECs and non-traditional courses.

8. EWY asked about the loss of 43 students who enrolled
with GC but haven'’t stayed. Students can enrol at multiple
post 16 providers and then decide which one to stay with.
UAN said that some students had lessons at several
colleges before deciding where to study.

DSH said that students are actively encouraged by
secondary schools to keep their options open.

SMI said that open days are run to helps students make
their minds up.

EBO shared that Kirklees are writing to parents of Year 8s,
asking if children want to change school in order to opt out
of the GCSE route, they can. JPA said that the LA is giving
children choice if they want a vocational route. RAR said
there is currently uncertainty about BTEC course availability
for the future.

EWY asked if GC should engage with Kirklees around
students duplicate enrolling with post 16 providers. ABA
asked if GC needs to build into the strategy that several
students will be lost directly after enrolment.

RAR said that a strategy change might be considered by
governors not to expand and to concentrate on the local
area, but this is for a future discussion.

ABA summarised that enrolment numbers have dropped
and CLT are looking at this strategy and how they will meet
the current target of 1450 next year.

4.4 Oxbridge Outcomes 2024 —

The information details which secondary schools the
successful students attended.

Following MBR’s meetings with Local Partner School head
teachers, GC will share updates and digital posters
celebrating the successes (including Oxbridge) of their
alumni.

RAR asked about the data which seems to suggest that
Cambridge offers a PPE course which it doesn’t, EWY also

Page 7 of 11




asked that the data be checked as it doesn’t add up
correctly - this will be investigated.

The information in the data has subsequently been
confirmed as correct.

DSH asked if Holmfirth High School always have more
Oxbridge offers in comparison to the other local partner
schools — it does.

SMI asked about the limited success from private schools —
RAR said that Oxford and Cambridge currently have a
target to recruit more students from state schools.

RAR asked about GC’s neutral attitude about which
Oxbridge College students apply to, giving an example that
if students apply to the Hill Colleges at Cambridge, they
would be more successful.

JPA asked if students are made aware of this. TRO said
that the Oxbridge coaches are very experienced, have good
knowledge of the courses and the likelihood of success.

5. Verbal updates

5.1 UAN gave a verbal update on Student Support and
Welfare.

1. Initial tutor interviews with A1 students have started to
see how the students are settling in.

2. UCAS deadline for A2 students wanting to study
medicine, vet science, dentistry and Oxbridge is 15/10/24.
3. Behaviour around college is calm.

4. Additional outdoor seating has been installed; social
space is still an issue, but this will improve when the new
build is completed next summer.

5. A1 parents evening was successful and well attended.

5.2 MMI and TRO gave a verbal update on Quality of
Education.
1. TRO updated the committee (Action Log - 8 — are student
re-engagement interventions working).
CLT concentrated on the 40 most underperforming students
with low target grades and attendance issues.

e 19 improved their grades (47.5%)

e 6 remained the same (15%)

e 12 grades worsened (30%), one of these students

was guilty of exam malpractice

e 3 students left GC (7.5%)
CLT have agreed this process will start earlier in the AY,
from 21/10/24 teachers have been asked to track the
progress of A1 and A2 students’ attitude to learning.
Student contracts are introduced quicker, and students are
given realistic targets, there is more clarity for staff with an
integrated approach for pastoral and curriculum staff in the
re-engagement policy. Attendance is key and is discussed
at every tutor meeting.
EBO agreed the changes have been impactful, and praised
progressive curriculum coaching, students are treated like

Page 8 of 11




adults which they like, and she has observed phenomenal
examples of duty of care to young adults from pastoral
colleagues.

EBO thanked CLT for their continued time and support.
TRO said the investment in Power Bi is proving successful.
It is user friendly, identifies students to help and improves
interrogation of the data.

ABA praised CLT for the positive impact on 47% of the
underperforming students.

2. MBR said that attitude to learning scores have been
added to the parents evening presentation and MBR
explains the monitoring process and consequences to
attitude to learning scores of 3 or 4 in A1 assemblies.
MMI said that VESPA is an ongoing project. Staff have
been coached to set meaningful targets and how to get
student buy in to take ownership of learning outside
lessons.

3. JISC will visit GC to help audit the staff body and help
increase staff IT skills.

4. W/C 30/9/24 was Course Change week.

DSH asked how many students changed courses and was
it mainly around a specific subject — 80 students changed,
this was lower than previous years, and it was over a
spread of subjects.

Teachers were concerned that online enrolment would
increase course change requests, but it halved them.
RAR asked about the increase in enrolments for Music —
local colleges have stopped offering these courses and
enrolments increased by three students. Drama has six A2
students, but A1 Drama has 20 and German has also
increased.

5.3 MMI gave a verbal update on the Skills Agenda.

1. A West Yorkshire college was Ofsted inspected recently,
and they received a ‘strong‘ contribution in Skills. MMI has
scheduled a call with them to share best practice.

2. MMI and TRO have visited the Chamber of Commerce to
network and make contacts.

3. WYCA will help connect GC with contacts to help
develop the skills agenda.

On behalf of the committee, ABA recognised the whole
teaching community who play a big part helping students.

6. Risk summary
& Hirst Risk
register

Risk summary and Hirst Risk Register previously circulated.

EWY said movements in risks are captured in the summary,
and a Risk scorecard is currently being developed and will
allow key risk indicators to be monitored.

Q&S committee members noted the Risk summary and
Risk register.

Page 9 of 11




7. Policies to
review

7.1 Online Safety Policy -

JPA asked to be updated about online incidents in her
termly Safeguarding and Prevent Lead governor meetings.
JPA asked if there is an Al policy — this is currently being
written, a GC staff member is on the SFCA national
committee to develop a sixth form sector Al policy.

JPA asked that the Al Policy is referenced in the Online
Safety Policy when it is produced.

ABA asked that the Al Policy also comes to Q&S committee
for oversight and approval and asked for the timeline for
when it will be in place.

The main update to the policy is the Internet Code of
Conduct which details expectations of students when they
use IT in college. ABA asked if students are shown the
Internet Code of Conduct when they join GC — they are, and
they are also told about Light Speed which monitors the IT
systems used at GC.

EWY asked that any future updates to policies are
highlighted so governors can see what has been changed.
Q&S committee members approved the Online Safety
Policy.

7.2 Mental Health & Wellbeing Policy -

CPA said that GC has received a gold award for Further
Education Mental Health, and this is detailed in the policy.
Further research will be undertaken around the staff
wellbeing survey and the timing of the survey will be
considered. MBR has been running staff drop in forums
which has introduced a living and breathing approach to
wellbeing.

A working party will look at ways to improve GC’s approach
to wellbeing throughout the year.

Q&S members approved the Mental Health and Wellbeing
Policy.

RAR congratulated all staff involved in achieving the gold
award for Further Education Mental Health.

UAN

UAN

UAN

8. Link Visit
summary

Link Visit Summary, previously circulated.

ABA edited this document following feedback at Q&S
(7/10/24).

Link Visits will be an agenda item at Corporation on 9/10/24
and governors will be asked to volunteer for Link Visits in
2025.

The Link Visit process improved in the recent Q&S
meetings will be rolled out to governors at Corporation on
9/12/24.

Q&S members approved the updated document.

Clerk for
agenda

9. Review Terms
of Reference

Amended Q&S Terms of Reference, previously circulated,
amendments are highlighted.

Page 10 of 11




The amendment is that associate governors can be
included in Q&S quoracy and can vote in the committee
meetings, this does not include Corporation meetings.

This was a recommendation from the External Governance
Review.

Committee members approved the Q&S Terms of
Reference 2024/25.

11. Any Other
Business

ABA and the Clerk have reviewed the External Governance
Review Action Plan in respect of actions for Q&S
committee.

The actions include revising the agenda, KPIs and
Committees connecting to the Board by the committee
chairs giving updates in the Corporation meetings. These
actions have been added into the end of the Matters Arising
- Action Log.

UAN asked that 9&10 (UCAS) be moved into one action in
the Action Log.

Q&S committee members were happy with the actions that
are ‘proposed to close’ in the action log.

Clerk

13. Confidentiality

Nothing identified.

14. Date next
meeting

Next meeting: Q&S (SAR Validation), Mon, 2 December
2024, 1pm, at College

Minutes prepared by Sharon Roper (Clerk to the Corporation) on 18/11/24

Approved & signed by, Richard Armstrong, Chair, on 2/12/24

Page 11 of 11




